EXHIBIT "B"

BY-LAWS

OF

FOUR WINDS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I.

THE ASSOCIATION

Section 1. Identity. These are the By-Laws of Four Winds Condominium Association, Inc., a not for profit corporation (the "Association"), which was formed under the Alabama Non-Profit Corporation Act [Code of Alabama 1975 10-3A-1 et seq] by filing the Articles of Incorporation of the Four Winds Condominium Association, Inc., (the "Articles"), with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama, on June 25, 1997. The Association has been organized for the purposes of providing for the acquisition, operation, management, maintenance, care, control and administration of Four Winds, a condominium (the "Condominium"), pursuant to the provisions of the Alabama Uniform Condominium Act of 1991 [Code of Alabama 35-8A-101 et seq.] (the "Condominium Act") and the Declaration of Condominium of Four Winds, a condominium (the "Declaration"), as filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama, in accordance with the provisions of said Act. The terms capitalized herein shall be deemed to have the meanings set forth in the Declaration and the Condominium Act.

Section 2. <u>Principal Office</u>. The principal office of the Association in the State of Alabama shall be located in the City of Orange Beach, County of Baldwin. The Association may have such other offices, either within or without the State of Alabama, as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the Association may require from time to time.

Section 3. Registered Office. The registered office of the Association, required by the Alabama Non-Profit Corporation Act to be maintained in the State of Alabama, may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office in the State of Alabama, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II

MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. <u>Annual Meeting</u>. The annual meeting of the Membership shall be held on the third Saturday in the month of January in each year, beginning with the year 199 at the hour of

11:00 a.m., or at such other time on such other day within such month as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors, for the purpose of electing directors, if the period of Developer control has ended, and in any event, for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting shall be a legal holiday in the State of Alabama, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If the election of directors shall not be held on the day designated herein for any annual meeting of the Membership, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the Membership as soon thereafter as conveniently may be.

Section 2. <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Membership, for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, may be called by the President or by a majority of the Board of Directors and shall be called by the President or the Secretary at the request of holders of not less than twenty (20%) percent of all the outstanding votes of the Membership.

Section 3. <u>Place of Meeting</u>. The Board of Directors may designate any place, within or without the State of Alabama, a the place of meeting for any annual meeting or for any special meeting of the Membership. If no designation is made, or if a special meeting is otherwise called, the place of the meeting shall be the principal office of the Association in the State of Alabama.

Section 4. Notice of Meeting. Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in case of a special meeting, or of a meeting which is required by statute to be held for any special purpose, or of an annual meeting at which special action is to be taken, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, or the special action which is proposed to be taken, shall, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, be delivered not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of meeting, either personally or by mail, by or at the direction of the President, the Secretary, or the persons calling the meeting, to each member of record entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail, addressed to the member at his address as it appears on the records of the Association, with postage thereon prepaid.

Section 5. Fixing of Record Data. The Board of Directors may fix in advance a date as the record date for the purpose of determining the members entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of members or nay adjournment thereof, or for any other proper purpose, such date in any case to be not more than thirty (30) days and, in case of a meeting of the Membership, not less than ten (10) days prior to the date on which the particular action requiring such determination of members is to be taken. If no record date is fixed for the determination of members entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of the Membership, the date on which notice of the meeting is mailed shall be the record date for

such determination of members. When a determination has been made, as provided in this section, such determination shall apply to any adjournment thereof.

Section 6. Voting Lists. The officer or agent having change of the records of members of the Association shall make, at least ten (10) days before each meeting of the Membership, a complete list of the members entitled to vote at such meeting, or any adjournment thereof, arranged in alphabetical order, with the address of each member and the number of votes to which he is entitled, which list, for a period of ten (10) days prior to such meeting, shall be kept on file at the principal office of the Association and shall be subject to inspection by an member making written request therefor at any time during usual business hours. Such list shall also be produced and kept open at the time and place of the meeting and shall be subject to the inspection of any member during the whole time of the meeting.

Section 7. Quorum. The presence at any meeting of the Membership of the members entitled to cast twenty (20%) percent of the votes in the Association, represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum. If a quorum is not present at any meeting, a majority of the members so represented may adjourn the meeting and reconvene from time to time without further notice. At any such reconvened meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified. The members present or represented at a meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough members to leave less than a quorum.

Section 8. <u>Majority Vote</u>. The vote of members entitled to cast a majority oft votes represented at a meeting of the Membership at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the members of the Association, unless the vote of a greater number is required by law, the Declaration, the Articles, or these By-Laws.

Section 9. <u>Proxies</u>. At all meeting of the Membership, a member may vote in person or by proxy executed in writing by the member or by his duly authorized attorney in fact. A proxy is void if it is not dated or purports to be revocable without notice. such proxy shall be filed with the Secretary of the Association before or at the time of the meeting. No proxy shall be valid after on year from the date of its execution, unless a shorter terms is provided in the proxy.

Section 10. <u>Voting Rights</u>. If only one of the multiple Owners of a Unit is present at a meeting of the Association, he is entitled to cast all the votes allocated to that Unit. If more than one of the multiple Owners are present, the votes allocated to that Unit may be case only in accordance with the agreement of a majority in interest of the multiple Owners. There is a majority

agreement if any one of the multiple Owners cast as the votes allocated to that Unit without protest being made promptly to the person presiding over the meeting by any of the other Owners of the Unit.

Section 11. <u>Informal Action by Members</u>. Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Membership, or any other action which may be taken at any meeting of the Membership, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all the members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof.

ARTICLE III

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. <u>General Powers</u>. The business and affairs of the Association shall be managed by or under the direction of its Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The initial Board of Directors shall consist of three (3) directors. The by-Laws may be amended from time to time as provided for herein to increase or decrease the number of directors of the Association to not less than three (3) nor more than seven (7) directors. Each director shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the members and until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his death or until he shall have resigned or shall have been removed, as provided for herein. A director need not be a member of the Association.

Section 3. <u>Election of Directors</u>.

- (a) Election of directors entitled to be elected by the members shall be held a the annual meeting, of, if required in accordance with subj-paragraph (b) below, at a special meeting go the Membership. The election shall be by secret ballot (unless dispensed with by unanimous consent) and by a plurality of the votes cast. The Owner of each whole Unit shall be entitled to cast his votes for each of as many nominees as there are vacancies to be filled at the time of the election. There shall be not cumulative voting.
- (b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Sub-paragraph (a) above, or anything in these By-Laws to the contrary, the Developer (as defined in the Declaration), its successors and assigns and not members of the Association, shall have the exclusive right to control the Association by electing all of the members of the Board of Directors of the Association, and in the event of vacancies, the Developer shall fill the vacancies, until no later than the earlier of either (i) sixty (60) days after seventy-five percent (75%) of the total number of Units which may be created have been conveyed to purchasers of Units, or (ii) two (2) years have elapsed from the date the Developer has ceased to offer Units for sale in the ordinary course of business; provided that the Developer may, at

its option, terminate its control of the Association at an earlier date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, within ninety (90) days after conveyance of twenty-five percent (25%) of the Units, the Unit Owners other than Developer shall be entitled to elect twenty-five percent (25%) of the members of the Board of Directors. Not later than ninety (90) days after conveyance of fifty percent (50%) of the Units to Unit Owners other than Developer, not less than thirty-three and one-third (33 1/3%) of the members of the Board shall be elected by the Unit Owners. The Developer shall be entitled to appoint at least one (1) member of the Board of Directors as long as the Developer has Development Rights, and such right is not contrary to the other provisions of the Condominium Act. Within sixty (60) days before the dat of termination of control the Association by the Developer, the Board of Directors shall call and give not less then ten (10) nor more than thirty (3) days notice of a special meeting o the membership for the purpose of electing the members of the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Regular Meetings. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held without other notice than this By-Law immediately after, and at the same place as, the annual meeting of the Membership, provided, however, any such regular meeting may be held at any other time or place which shall be specified in a notice given as hereinafter provided for special meetings, or in a consent and waiver of notice hereof, signed by all directors. The Board of Directors may provide, by resolution, the time and place, within or without the State of Alabama, for the holding of additional regular meetings without other notice than such resolution.

Section 5. <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two (2) directors.

Section 6. Notice. Notice of any special meeting shall be given at least three (3) days previously thereto by written notice delivered personally or mailed to each director at his business address, or by telegram. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid. If notice be given by telegram, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when the telegram is delivered to the telegram company. Any director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business, because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the board of Directors need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting.

Section 7. Quorum. A majority of the number of directors determined in the manner fixed by Section 2 of this Article III shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any

meeting of the Board of Directors, but if less than such majority is present at a meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

Section 8. <u>Manner of Acting</u>. The act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.

Section 9. Action Without a Meeting. Any action that may be taken by the Board of Directors at a meeting may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the directors.

Section 10. <u>Vacancies</u>. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors and any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of directors may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors, except as otherwise provided in Section 3 above. A director elected or appointed, as the case may be, shall be elected or appointed for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office.

Section 11. <u>Compensation</u>. By resolution of the Board of Directors, the directors may be paid their expense, if any, of attendance at each meeting of the Board of directors, and may be paid a fixed sum for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors or a stated salary as a director or both. No such payment shall preclude any director from serving the Association in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.

Section 12. Committees. The Board of Directors may, by resolution or resolutions, passed by a majority of the whole Board, designate on one or more committees, each of which shall consist of two (2) or more directors and which, to the extent provided in said resolution or resolutions or in the By-Laws of the Association shall have and may exercise all of the powers of the Board of Directors in the management of the activities and affairs of the Association and may have power to authorize the seal of the Association to be affixed to all papers which may require it, except that no such committee shall have the authority of the Board of Directors in reference to amending, altering or repealing the By-Laws; electing, appointing or removing any member of any such committee or nay director or officer of the Association; amending the Articles, restating the Articles, adopting a plan of merger or adopting a plan of consolidation with another corporation; authorizing the sale, lease, exchange, or mortgage of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the Association; authorizing the voluntary dissolution of the Association or revoking proceedings therefor; adopting a plan for the distribution of assets of the Association; or amending, alerting or repealing any action or resolution of the Board of Directors which by its terms provides that it shall not be amended, altered, or repealed by such committee. The designation of such committee or committees or the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors or any individual director of any responsibility imposed upon it or him by law.

Section 13. Resignations. Any director of the Association may resign at any time, either by oral tender of resignation at any meeting of the Board or by giving written notice thereof to the Secretary of the Association. such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therefor and the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 14. <u>Place of Meeting</u>. The Board of Directors may designate any place within or without the State of Alabama as the place of meeting for any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 15. Presumption of Assent. A director of the Association who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless he shall file his written dissent to such action with the person acting as the Secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Association immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a director who voted in favor of such action.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

Section 1. Number. The officers of the Association shall be a President, one or more Vice President(s) (the number thereof to be determined by the Board of Directors), a Secretary, and a Treasurer, each of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors. Such other officers and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the President and Secretary. An officer need not be a member of the Association. The failure of the Board of Directors to elect any officers other than a President, a Treasurer and a Secretary shall not constitute a violation of the By-Laws.

Section 2. <u>Election and Term of Office</u>. The officers of the Association to be elected by the Board of Directors shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the Board of Directors held after each annual meeting of the Membership. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as may be convenient. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his death or until he shall have resigned or shall have been removed in the manner hereinafter provided.

Section 3. Removal. Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed at any time, by the affirmative vote of the Board of Directors, whenever in their

judgment the best interests of the Association will be served thereby. Any such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if nay, of the person so removed. Election or appointment of an officer shall not of itself create any contract rights in favor of such officer.

Section 4. <u>Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any office elected or appointed by the Board of Directors because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors of the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 5. President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall lin general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Membership. He may sign, with the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these By-Laws to some other officer or agent of the Association, or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and in general, shall perform all duties incident to the office of the President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 6. <u>Vice President</u>. In the absence of the President or in the event of his death, inability or refusal to act, the Vice President (or in the event there be more than one Vice President, the Vice Presidents in the order designated that the time of their election, or in the absence of nay designation, then in the order of their election) shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. Any Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 7. Secretary. The Secretary shall: (a) keep the minutes of the proceedings of the Members and of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for the purpose; (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws or as required by law; (c) be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the Association and see that the seal of the Association is affixed to all documents the execution of which on behalf of the Association under its seal is duly authorized; (d) keep a register of the mailing address of each member which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such member; (e) have general charge of the transfer books of the members of the Association; and (f) in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall: (a) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Association; (b) receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the Association form any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the Association in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provision of Article V of these By-Laws; and (c) in general perform all of the duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors. If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such sum and with such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine.

Section 9. Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurer. The Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasures, in general, shall perform such duties as shall be assigned to them by the Secretary or the Treasurer, respectively, or by the President or the Board of Directors. The Assistant Treasurers shall respectively, if required by the Board of Directors, give bonds for the faithful discharge of their duties in such sums and with such sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine.

Section 10. <u>Salaries</u>. The salaries of the officers, if any, shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors and no officer shall be prevented from receiving such salary by reason of the fact that he is also a director of the Association.

ARTICLE V

CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS

Section 1. <u>Contracts</u>. The Board of Directors may authorized any officer or officers, agent or agents to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Association, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 2. <u>Loans</u>. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Association and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 3. <u>Checks, Drafts, Etc.</u> All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Association, shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Association and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 4. <u>Deposits</u>. All funds of the Association not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Association in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

Section 5. <u>Proxies</u>. Unless otherwise provided by resolution of the Board of Directors, the President may from time to time appoint an attorney or agent of the Association, in the name and on behalf of the Association, to cast the votes which the Association may be entitled to cast as the holder of stock or other securities in any other corporation any of whose stock or other securities may be held by the Association, in meetings of the holders of the stock or other securities of such other corporation, or to consent in writing, in the name and on behalf of the Association, as such holder, to any action by such other corporation, and may instruct the person or persons so appointed as to the manner of casting such votes or giving such consent, and may execute or cause to be executed, in the name and on behalf of the Association and under its corporate seal or otherwise, all such written proxies or other instruments as he may deem necessary or proper in the premises.

ARTICLE VI

BOOKS AND RECORDS

Section 1. Accounting. The Association shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall keep minutes of the proceedings of the members, Board of Directors and committees thereof and shall keep at its registered or principal office in Alabama a record of the names and addresses of the members entitled to vote, directors and officers. The accounting records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. All books and records of the Association shall be open to inspection by the members of their authorized representatives for any proper purpose at any reasonable time in Baldwin County, Alabama. Such records shall include:

- (a) <u>Association Accounts</u>. The receipts and expenditures of the <u>Association shall</u> be credited and charged to the appropriate account as set forth below.
- (i) <u>Current Expenses</u>. All funds to be expended during the year for the maintenance of the Common Elements and Limited Common Elements (as defined in the Declaration) and the operation and working capital of the Association shall be held in the Current Expense Account. Any balance in this fund at the end of each year may be used to pay Common Expenses and Limited Common Expenses incurred in any successive year or may be placed in the Reserve Fund Account.
- (ii) <u>Reserve Funds</u>. All funds to be expended for replacement, acquisition and repair of capital improvements which are a part of Common Elements and Limited Common Elements shall be held in the Reserve Fund Account.
- (b) <u>Member Accounts</u>. An account for each member shall be maintained setting forth the name and address of the member, the interest percentage in the Common Elements and Limited Common

Elements, if any, the amount of each assessment, the amounts and dates on which the assessments become due, the amounts paid upon the account and the balance due.

Section 2. <u>Budget</u>. The Board of Directors shall adopt a proposed budget for each calendar and /or fiscal year that shall include the estimated funds required to defray the Common Expenses and Limited Common Expenses and to provide and maintain funds for the foregoing accounts and reserves according to good accounting practices. Within thirty (30) days of adoption of the proposed budget copies of the budget and proposed assessments shall be transmitted to each member of the Association and a date set for a meeting of the Unit Owners to consider ratification of the budget, not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than thirty (30) days after delivery of the budget to the Unit Owners. Unless, at the meeting, a majority of all Unit Owners present in person or by proxy reject the budget, the budget is ratified, whether or not a quorum is present. In the event the proposed budget is rejected, the budget for the last year shall continue in effect until such time a new budget is ratified.

Section 3. <u>Assessments</u>. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Declaration, assessments against the members for their shares of the items of the budget shall be made for the calendar year annually in advance on or before December 31, preceding the year for which the assessments are made. Such assessments shall be due in quarterly or monthly installments, as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Association. In the event the annual assessment proves to be insufficient, the budget and assessments may be amended at any time by the Board of Directors. Such assessments shall constitute a lien as provided for in the Declaration.

Section 4. <u>Assessments for Emergencies</u>. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Declaration, assessments for Common Expenses for emergencies that cannot be paid from the annual assessments for Common Expenses shall be made only after notice of the need for such is given to the members concerned, and it shall be due thirty (30) days after such notice in such manner as the Board of Directors of the Association may require in the notice of assessment. Such assessment shall constitute a lien as provided for in the Declaration.

Section 5. <u>Audit or Compilation</u>. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to require an audit or compilation of the accounts of the Association, at any time, by a majority vote of said Directors, and a copy of the audit report shall be made available for review by each member in Baldwin County, Alabama.

Section 6. <u>Bonds</u>. Fidelity bonds shall be required, if obtainable, by the Board of Directors from all persons handling or responsible for Association funds. The amount of such funds shall be determined by the Board of Directors, but shall not be less than

three times the amount of the total annual assessments against members for Common Expenses and Limited Common Expenses. The premiums of such bonds shall be paid by the Association.

Section 7. Rules and Regulations and Violation of any Documents. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Declaration, the Board of Directors may establish, abolish or amend reasonable rules and regulations concerning the use of the Common Elements. The text of such rules and regulations shall be furnished or made available to the members. The Board shall have the power, upon violation of the rules and regulations, or upon violation of the terms of the Declaration or By-Laws to impose monetary fines on a member which shall constitute a lien and shall be enforceable in like manner as provided for assessments or to suspend for a reasonable period of time either the member's right to the use of Common facilities within the Common Elements or the member's right to vote.

ARTICLE VII

WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given to any member or director of the Association under the provisions of these By-Laws, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, the provisions of the Alabama Non-Profit Corporation Act, and any act amendatory thereof, supplementary thereto or substituted therefor, the provisions of the Condominium Ownership Act of Alabama, and any act amendatory thereof, supplemental thereto or substituted therefor, or the Alabama Constitution, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

ARTICLE VIII

FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Association shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX

INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. The Association shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the Association) by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, finds and

amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Association, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that this conduct was unlawful.

Section 2. The Association shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the Association to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association, as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Association and except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his duty to the Association, unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the court shall deem proper.

To the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the Association has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in subsection (a) and (b), or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection therewith.

Any indemnification under Sections (1) and (2) above (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the Association only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because he has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections (1) and (2). Such determination shall be made (1) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, or (2) if such a quorum is not obtainable, or, even if obtainable, a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (3) by the membership.

Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the Association in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding as authorized by the Board of Directors in the specific case upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that he is entitled to be indemnified by the Association as authorized in this section.

The indemnification provided by this section shall not be deemed excessive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any by-law, agreement, vote of members or disinterested directors or to otherwise, both as to action in this official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENT

- Section 1. <u>Amendment to By-Laws</u>. These By-Laws may be amended, altered or repealed in the following manner:
- (a) By the Developer until such time as the Developer relinquishes its control of the Association in accordance with Article III, Section 3 herein; or
- (b) By the members at any regular or special meeting upon the affirmative vote of the holders of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding votes present at such meeting in person or represented by proxy.
- Section 2. <u>Recitation</u>. No modification or amendment to the By-Laws shall be valid and effective until the President and Secretary of the Association shall certify as to the adoption of such amendment and shall file their certificate setting forth the text of the amendment with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama.

Instrument 499190 Page 56of 63

EXHIBIT "C"

"AS - BUILT" PLANS AND CERTIFICATION FOR FOUR WINDS, A CONDOMINIUM, AS THE SAME ARE RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA IN APARTMENT BOOK /9, PAGES /2/, ET SEQ.

EXHIBIT "D"

EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS AND OTHER ENCUMBRANCES ON THE CONDOMINIUM PROPERTY

- (a) All ad valorem taxes and assessments for the year of closing and thereafter.
- (b.) Subject to a reservation of all oil, gas and other minerals and all rights in connection therewith.
- (c.) Development Rights and Special Declarant Rights granted Developer by the Condominium Documents and by the Act.
- (d.) Subject to the Articles of Incorporation of Four Winds Condominium Association, Inc., a not for profit corporation, as the same is recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate as Instrument No. $\underline{499/87}$.
- (e.) Subject to the Declaration of Condominium of Four Winds, a condominium, and all exhibits thereto, as the same is recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Baldwin County, Alabama as Instrument No. 499/90.
- (f.) Zoning, planning, and other restrictions or regulations upon the use of the Property as may be imposed by the City of Orange Beach or any other governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Property.
- (g.) Subject to any future adjustment made by either the Tax Assessor's office or the Board of Equalization.
- (h.) Utility easement and right-of-way granted Baldwin County E. M. C. by instrument dated _____ and recorded as Instrument No. _____
- (i.) Building setback lines and drainage and utility easements as shown on the recorded plat or Plans of said condominium.
- (j.) Rights of other parties, the United States of America or the State of Alabama in and to the shore, littoral or riparian rights to any of the property described above which lies adjacent to the Gulf of Mexico.
- (k.) Any adverse claim based upon the assertion that some portion of the Property is located below high mean tide.

EXHIBIT "D" CONTINUATION PAGE

- (1.) The rights of the public, if any, to use any part of the beach, including any part of the land lying between the body of water of the Gulf of Mexico and the boundary line of the Property as granted by Federal or State law.
- (m.) Reservation of oil, gas and other minerals in, on, and under said real property, together with all rights or easements in connection therewith, as have previously been reserved by or conveyed to others and presently of record.
- (n.) Reservation of oil, gas and other minerals and all rights in connection therewith, as set forth in deed from Harvey T. Nack, Jr., et al to S. F. Holinger, dated February 4, 1984 and recorded in Real Property Book 167, page 1711, et seq.
- (o.) Subject to unrecorded easements, discrepancies or conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area and encroachments which an accurate and complete survey would disclose.
- All recording references are to the official records in the office of the Judge of Probate, Baldwin County, Alabama.

EXHIBIT "E"

FRACTIONAL OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN COMMON ELEMENTS (RESPECTIVE SHARE OF EACH UNIT) AND NUMERICAL VALUE OF TO WHICH EACH UNIT IS ENTITLED

FORMULA:

The formula for arriving at the Percentage (Fractional) Ownership Interest in the Common Elements (respective share of each Unit) shall be a percentage interest, which shall be determined by dividing the approximate square footage of a Unit by the total square footage of all the Units. The total percentage interest shall never exceed 100%. Each Unit shall be entitled to one vote, which will be equal to that Units percentage interest. The Common Expenses shall be charged to Unit Owners according to the percentage undivided interest of the respective Units in the Common Elements.

EXHIBIT "E" CONTINUATION PAGE

	PERCENTAGE	
	OWNERSHIP	NUMERICAL
	INTEREST	VALUE OF
	IN COMMON & LIMITED	VOTE TO
	COMMON ELEMENTS	WHICH UNIT
	(Respective share	IS
UNIT NUMBER	of each unit)	ENTITLED
Residential Units:		
Residential Onits:		
101	.0235525	1
102	.0233587	1
103	.0233587	1
104	.0235525	1
201	.0328574	ī
202	.0233587	1
203	.0233587	1
204	.0336974	1
301	.0328574	1
302	.0233587	1
303	.0233587	1
304	.0336974	1
401	.0328574	1
402	.0233587	1
403	.0233587	1
404	.0336974	1 1
501	.0328574	1
502	.0233587	1
503	.0233587	1 1
504	.0336974	1
601	.0328574	1
602	.0233587	1
603	.0233587	1
604	.0336974	1
701	.0328574	1
702	.0233587	1
703	.0233587	1
704	.0336974	1
801	.0328574	1
802	.0233587	1
803	.0233587	1
804	.0336974	1
901	.0328574	1 1 1 1 1 1
902	.0233587	1
903	.0233587	1
904	.0336974	1
TOTAL: 36	1.00000%	36

EXHIBIT "F"

FOUR WINDS OPERATING BUDGET (based on 100% occupancy)

Projected Budget for the year after the conveyance of the first Unit

INCOME Association Fees	84,120.00
TOTAL INCOME**	84,120.00
MAINTENANCE EXPENSE Building Maintenance and Repairs Supply Building Maintenance and Repairs/Contract Miscellaneous Repairs Elevator Maintenance/Contract Grounds and Pool Maintenance Supply Grounds and Pool Maintenance/Contract Exterminating Service and Termite Bond Furniture and Furnishing Replacement Repair and Replacement Reserve	750.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,400.00 1,750.00 7,500.00 2,500.00 750.00 3,750.00
TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE	21,400.00
UTILITIES EXPENSE Electricity Water and Sewer Garbage and Trash Removal Cable TV	3,500.00 14,000.00 2,000.00 3,700.00
TOTAL UTILITIES EXPENSE	23,200.00
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE Management Fee Postage Phone Expense Supplies Legal Expense Security	6,000.00 100.00 360.00 400.00 100.00
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE	7,960.00
TAXES AND INSURANCE EXPENSE Taxes, Licenses and Permits Property and Liability Insurance Fidelity Coverage Insurance Taxes and Insurance Reserve	250.00 29,600.00 500.00 1,000.00
TOTAL TAXES AND INSURANCE EXPENSE	31,350.00
TOTAL EXPENSES	83,910.00
PROFIT/LOSS	210.00

EXHIBIT "F" CONTINUATION PAGE

Projected monthly maintenance expense: (maintenance expenses have been rounded up to nearest dollar amount)

Type A units (one bedroom): \$1,968.00 per year / \$164.00 per month

Type A' units (one bedroom) \$1,980.00 per year / \$165.00 per month

Type B units (two bedroom): \$2,760.00 per year / \$230.00 per month

Type B' units (two bedroom): \$2,832.00 per year / \$236.00 per month

NOTES:

The above Estimated Operating Budget was prepared by the Developer, Four Winds Associates, L.L.C., and is based upon 100% occupancy. The Developer shall not be responsible for any increase in the Common Expenses of Four Winds Condominium Association, Inc. ("Association") occasioned by increases in the respective cost of water, sewer, maintenance, utilities, insurance, or other matters. The fiscal management of the Association shall be governed by the Board of Directors of the Association as set forth in the Declaration and By-laws of the Association. Buyer is responsible for the payment of all utilities individually metered or connected to his Unit. The estimated Common Expense is deemed reasonably accurate and adequate as of the date of its preparation, but no warranty or guarantee is intended. No unit owner shall be exempt from paying his/her proportionate share of the common or limited common expense by waiver or nonuse or nonenjoyment of the common elements.

** The above Budget does not reflect the Working Capital funds which will be paid to the Association at the initial closing on each Unit. The Working Capital fund is a one time contribution to the Association which is equal to two months maintenance expense.